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 General Comments for All Three Request for Proposals 

RFP Submittal Package Can more than one proposal be submitted 
for this package? 

No entity or individual may submit more than 
one Proposal for any single lease presented 
in a Request for Proposals.  This limitation 
includes any level of ownership in the 
Proposer.  In the event that an entity or 
individual submits more than one Proposal 
for any single lease in a Request for 
Proposals, the Airport will only evaluate the 
last Proposal received before the Submittal 
Deadline and will reject all other Proposals 
submitted by such entity or individual. 

Enplanement Forecast Could you provide passenger traffic 
forecast? If such a document is not 
available, could you confirm that Boarding 
area A will remain international in the 
upcoming years? 

 

Currently, annual enplanements in Boarding 
Area A are approximately 4 million.  This 
consists of both international and domestic 
enplanements.  The gates on Boarding Area 
A will continue to be utilized primarily, and 
perhaps eventually entirely, for international 
departing flights.  We expect enplanements 
to grow at an average rate of 2-3% annually, 
however, the Airport Commission does not 
guarantee future sales or enplanements. 

 

Submittal Deadline What was the reasoning that the deadlines 
for question -comments and the opening of 
the Portal for RFP submittals move back? 
Now the Portal is open over a major 
holiday week?  Was this delay requested? 
Submittal Portal was 6/19 to 6/23 and it is 
now 7/03 to 7/07. 

We extended the deadline for questions and 
comments to give all interested parties time 
to review and ask questions about the 
drawings that were made available after the 
issuance of the RFP.  Similarly, we wanted to 
provide more time for proposal preparation.   
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Concepts 

 

My understanding is that these three RFPs 
would have to be San Francisco based 
concepts. I believe this limits other 
proposers with successful concepts in the 
Bay Area (outside of San Francisco).   

 

Operators who have similar concepts and 
would be the operators VS a licensed 
concept should be encouraged to submit. 

 

The limit to concepts operating in San 
Francisco only applies to the International 
Terminal “A” Historic Restaurant Concession 
Lease and the International Terminal “A” 
Food Hall and Café Concession Lease.  The 
International Terminal “A” Coffee Kiosk 
Concession Lease does not include this 
requirement.   

For the Historic Restaurant Lease and the 
Food Hall Lease, the proposing entity does 
not have to be based in San Francisco.  
Rather, the brands proposed have to be in 
operation in San Francisco. 

Specifically, for the Historic Restaurant 
Lease, the brand proposed must have been 
in operation in the City of San Francisco for 
30 years or more, with no break in San 
Francisco operations exceeding 2 years.  For 
the Food Hall Lease, all three brands 
proposed for the Food Hall must currently 
operate within the City of San Francisco.   

Submittal C I would also recommend adding points to 
Proposers who have been operators at 
SFO, since they have played an important 
role in the Food & Beverage program. 

On June 6, 2017, staff will seek the Airport 
Commission’s authorization to retain the 
current Evaluation Criteria and scoring 
weights. 
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International Terminal “A” Coffee Kiosk Concession Lease 

Concept Given the intent is to be a grab and go 
quick serve concept and the current 
description is for coffee, juice, tea, can 
smoothies also be incorporated into the 
proposed space description?  Smoothies 
fit the "on the go" concept and if juice is 
included in addition to coffee it seems like 
smoothies should be too. 

The desired concept for this Lease is coffee 
and shall be the highlight of the kiosk.  
However, the Airport will allow a limited 
selection of tea and/or smoothies.  The 
Airport will issue an addendum to the RFP 
with a revised Exhibit B of the Lease to 
reflect this change. 

I feel that the tapioca tea trend or Boba tea 
is a good installment to the kiosk.  I believe 
that having the Kiosk that is generally 
around Coffee and Tea is a better fit for 
this "international" terminal and this will 
give a better variety and diversity. 

Will one be allowed to have another 
branded concept for coffee other than 
Starbuck's, such as IIly coffee? 

Yes, any coffee concept may be proposed for 
this Lease. 

Permitted Use During my review of the Lease and RFP, I 
noticed the concept description may 
include very limited sandwich and salads. 
What do you mean by limited?  How many 
different types? 

The Airport will issue an addendum to the 
RFP with a revised Exhibit B of the Lease to 
clarify these limitations. 

We are a coffee/crepe company and want 
to know if Sweet & Savory Crepes can be 
added along with the sandwich/salads? 

 

The desired concept for this Lease is coffee 
and shall be the highlight of the kiosk.  
However, the Airport will allow crepes as part 
of the Optional Products offered under the 
Lease.  The Airport will issue an addendum 
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to the RFP with a revised Exhibit B of the 
Lease to reflect this change. 

Will you allow sandwiches and salads to 
be sold?  Currently we have a Starbucks 
"We Proudly Brew" kiosk and sandwiches 
and salads are almost required. 

Yes, sandwiches and salads are included as 
part of the Optional Products offered under 
Exhibit B of the Lease. 

Will the sale of San Francisco famous sour 
dough bread "to go" be allowed? 

No. 

Term Can the base term be increased from 7 
years to 10 years? 

On June 6, 2017, staff will seek approval of 
the Airport Commission to extend the Lease 
Term to eight (8) years, plus two (2) one-year 
options, and will issue an addendum to the 
RFP to reflect this change if approved.   

Would you possibly change the Lease 
Term to Ten (10) years, plus two (2) 
options to extend the term by                    
one (1) year each? 

The above Lease is at 7 years, we wish to 
request the lease terms of 10 years with 3 
years option upon renewal. 

Submittal C P. 9 of the RFP, Tab 5 mentions “This 
section shall be no greater than 40 pages”. 
Does the page limitation include Submittal 
C, renderings and menu list and prices? 

Yes, the proposer’s responses to Submittal C 
shall be limited to 40 pages. 

Submittal D Can you confirm that Submittal D is to be 
included in Tab 6 and not in Tab 5, as 
mentioned in Submittal C – Evaluation 
Criteria? 

The Financial Pro Forma (Submittal D) will be 
uploaded as a separate file and does not 
need to be duplicated when uploading the 
response to the Evaluation Criteria (Submittal 
C). 
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Drawings Could you provide a .dwg layout or a 
detailed layout of Space A.3.002C? 

 

All available drawings, whether in CAD or 
PDF format, have been posted on the 
Airport’s SharePoint website.  Instructions to 
access the site can be found here: 
http://mission.sfgov.org/OCA_BID_ATTACH
MENTS/FA48946.pdf  

If the desired format is not shown, then it is 
not available. 

 

Infrastructure Does the coffee kiosk have plumbing for 
water and waste water attached, or do we 
have to bear the expense to hook up for 
the services? 

This location does not have any infrastructure 
in place.  The successful proposer shall bring 
all required utilities to the space at the 
successful proposer’s expense. 

What is the method to obtain fresh water 
and the disposal of waste water?  Is 
plumbing available for those endeavors? 
And if not is it incumbent upon the airport 
to provide it, or does it belong to the 
tenant? 

International Terminal “A” Historic Restaurant Concession Lease 

Alcoholic Beverage Control Is the liquor license (47) to be procured by 
us at the market rate or is it a community 
license used by several SFO operations? 
Is there a new issue $6000.00 license 
available? 

 

Please visit the California Department of 
Alcoholic Beverage Control website for 
information regarding ABC Licensing 
(http://abc.ca.gov/index.html). 

For specific questions regarding ABC 
licensing at SFO, please contact the San 
Francisco District Office at (415) 356-6500. 

 

http://mission.sfgov.org/OCA_BID_ATTACHMENTS/FA48946.pdf
http://mission.sfgov.org/OCA_BID_ATTACHMENTS/FA48946.pdf
http://abc.ca.gov/index.html
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Drawings We have been able to view the documents 
for Terminal A, Historic Restaurant 
Concessions Lease, but have a 
clarification question.  The documents for 
the lease refers to space A3.045, however, 
the LOD documents has an indication of 
the space (indicated in Red) with the 
notation that the space is "A3.046, 2000 
sq. ft."  We are not sure if there is a conflict 
of the notations and whether the space 
indicated in RED is the space that is for 
consideration.  The Amoura space is 
indicated as A3.045 and assumed to be 
the space for consideration and appears to 
coincide as a portion of the total space 
indicated in RED. 

The current conditions are as follows: 

 Space No. A.3.045 is Amoura Café 
(828 sq. ft.) 

 Space No. A.3.046 is U.S. News and 
World Report (474 sq. ft.) 

The new location for the Historic Restaurant 
will be named Space No. A.3.046, and 
consists of approximately 2,000 sq. ft.  It is 
being formed by merging the Amoura and 
U.S. News and World Report spaces with a 
portion of the adjacent Coach store (Space 
No. A.3.044). 

International Terminal “A” Food Hall & Café Concession Lease 

Concept Since the RFP doesn't want deli/cafe 
sandwich specific concepts, will the Airport 
allow/ be interested in grilled sandwich 
concepts, like a gourmet grilled cheese 
restaurant that in addition to grilled cheese 
sandwiches also specializes in house 
made soups, fresh salads, baked treats 
and sides? 

One June 6, 2017, staff will seek the Airport 
Commission’s authorization to remove 
“sandwich-centric” as a prohibited concept. 
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The International Terminal Food Hall RFP 
states that concepts must currently be 
operating in San Francisco.  During the 
pre-proposal conference, there was some 
dialogue that led me to believe this wasn't 
absolutely mandatory, but strongly 
suggested.  Should we be successful in 
partnering with a firm, would our brand be 
immediately disqualified from 
consideration? 

The proposing entity does not have to be 
based in San Francisco.  However, all three 
brands proposed for the Food Hall must 
currently operate within the City of San 
Francisco. 

 

Similarly, for the Historic Restaurant Lease, 
the proposing entity does not have to be 
based in San Francisco.  Rather, the brand 
proposed must have been in operation in the 
City of San Francisco for 30 years or more, 
with no break in San Francisco operations 
exceeding 2 years.   

Under the restaurant lease does the 
business have to operate in San 
Francisco? I understand this for the 
historic concession; however, for the other 
restaurant RFP a Bay Area company 
should be considered. 

Minimum Qualification 
Requirements 

I believe the qualifying prior business 
revenue is a bit high for this because I 
believe that the city are promoting small 
business versus big box corporation. A 
small cafe like ours would generally make 
half of 3 million a year. $1.5 Million a year 
is already a very successful business. 
Therefore I believe that the qualifying 
revenue should be at $1.5 million 

On June 6, 2017, staff will seek the Airport 
Commission’s authorization to retain the 
current Minimum Qualification Requirements.  

Submittal C Can a proposer submit more than one 
brand for each of the requested concepts 
in the food hall? 

 

No, the proposer may only propose one 
brand for each location within the Food Hall. 

 

 


